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WE ASPIRE TO BE

A SYMBIOTIC PIONEERS INSURANCE INDUSTRY.

——

We aim to provide service and insurance products
using the maost distinctive means of technology

to all segments of customners through innovation

of new products aimed at achieving a surplus of
insurance activity and maximizing return on investment
for each of the policy holders & shareholders,




Date:17/03/2021
The Sharia Report of WETHAQ TAKAFUL INSURANCE CO.
Fatwa and Shariah Supervisory Board

For the period from 01/01/2020 to 31/12/2020
To: The Shareholders of Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.S.C).

Peace, mercy and blessings of Allah be upon you.

According to the contract signed with us we at Fatwa and Shariah Supervisory Board in
Al Mashora and Al Raya have audited and supervised the principles adopted and the
contracts related to the transactions concluded by the Company during the period from
01/01/2020 to 31/12/2020. We have carried out the necessary supervision to give our
opinion on whether or not the Company has complied with the Islamic Shariah rules and
principles as well as the Fatwas, decisions and guidelines made by us.

However, our liability is limited to the expression of independent opinion on the extent
of the company compliance with same based on our audit.

Our supervision included examining the contracts and procedures used by the
Company on the basis of examining each type of operations.

In our opinion, the contracts, operations and transactions concluded or used by the
Company during the period from 01/01/2020 to 31/12/2020. and which have been
reviewed by us, were in compliance with the provisions and principles of the Islamic
Shariah.

Moreover, The Company has to draw the attention of its shareholders to the fact that
they should pay their Zakat by themselves.

We wish the Company all success and prosperity in serving our religion and our country.

Peace, mercy and blessings of Allah be upon you.

(7P

Prof /Abdul Aziz K. Al-Qassar

Chairman of the Sharia Committee 1
e

L 4 [ 4
Dr. Esam Alenezi Dr. Ali Ibrahim Al-Rashed
Sharia Committee Member Sharia Committee Member
1.22.000.000 :g st Jlall info@mandr.com.kw
Al Mirggab — Al Sour Street — Jassem Al Asfour Tower — 7 th Floor www.mandr.com.kw
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Board of Directors Statement

2020 AD

Praise be to God, Lord of the worlds, peace and blessings be upon the master of
the messengers, our honest Prophet Muhammad, his Households, all his
companions, and their followers of charity until doomsday.

Dear esteemed shareholders,

Peace, mercy and blessings of God be upon you,

First of all, it is my pleasure, on behalf of myself and on behalf of the members
of the board of directors of “Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company” for accepting

the invitation to attend the 19" meeting of the General Assembly, also we are

honored to present the Annual Report of the business and achievements of the
company for the fiscal year ending 31/12/2020, Including the report of the
Sharia Supervisory Board from Al Mashora & Al Rayah for Islamic Financial
Consulting Company, the auditor’s report, glimpses of the markets status and
performance of the insurance sector activity, summary of the company's
achievements and its strategies in order to achieve its goals.

Wethaq has been keen to meet the needs of customers and markets in light of
the new accelerating challenges and keep abreast of these developments, in
addition to continuing its cautious approach and strategy in developing
competitive underwriting mechanisms and policies and following a policy of
selectivity based on the principle of beneficial partnership, to maintain the best
reinsurance operations to protect the rights of shareholders and policyholders.
The company achieved strategic growth in some insurances that were targeted
to increase and reduce other insurances that benefit the company with losses
and damages, but in light of the pandemic conditions and its repercussions, the
company closed 71 days completely, and the company reduced its working hours




by 20% within 91 days, in addition to avoiding Direct interaction and visits to
various types of clients, as these activities have decreased by about 85%, and
the number of company's staff has decreased up to date, based on the decisions
of the Council of Ministers regarding the precautionary and preventive
measures taken regarding the pandemic Covid-19, and accordingly the
company’s performance recorded a decrease of nearly 32% in the total general
underwritten premiums. "WETHAQ" also works on keeping pace with
mechanization and interacting with customers in effective ways, through
practical technological tools, in order to achieve growth in its performance and
competitive capabilities.

"WETHAQ" has maintained its rating granted by the international credit rating
agency Standard & Poor's S&P in 2020 at (B), but with a negative outlook, which
inits last report, the agency expected "Wethaq" to increase its various insurance
activities in light of difficult market conditions.

Accordingly, it was approved to raise the company’s annual financial statements

for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2020, and the Board of Directors

recommended not distributing profits for the ended year, as well as not
distributing bonuses to members of the Board of Directors.

The following is a review of the financial results..

"WETHAQ" achieved a loss of KD 1,277,644 by (11.6) fils per share in year 2020,
compared to (0.79) fils per share for the same period compared to year 2019.

The total assets depreciation rate reached 0.79%, and the shareholders’ equity
decrease by 1.34% compared to last year 2019.

The total assets amounted to KD 11,980,701, and total shareholders' equity
amounted to KD 11,889,712.

The rate of decline in total operating income amounted to 31.87%, while the
surplus of operational operations for the year 2020 amounted to KD 65,332,
compared to a deficit in operational operations of KD 686,730 for the year 2019.




In conclusion, we can only extend our thanks and great gratitude to all the
official authorities in the country, especially the Ministry of Commerce and
Industry, the Capital Markets Authority, the Kuwait Stock Exchange, the
Insurance Regulatory Unit, and all our shareholders and valued customers for

the support and encouragement we have witnessed for the process of Takaful

work.
God grants success.

Dr. Abdulrahman Khalifa Al-Shayji
Chairman of Board of Directors

31/12/2020
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Audlt of Consolidated Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 31 Dacembear 2020

Wethaq Takaful Insurance 'Em'n'pany (K.5.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

To the Shareholder,

Qualified opinion

We have audiled the consobdated financial statements of Wethag Takaful Insurance
Company (K.5.C.P} {the "Parerd Company”} and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group®),
which comprise the consolidated slatement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of olher compréhensive
incomne, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policias.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for
Gualified Opinion secticn of our repord, the accompanying consofidated financial statermants
present falrly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and itg coneolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Internatiena’ Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs)},

Basgis for Qualified Opinion

1, The consolidated financial statements for the financial vear ended 31 December 2020
include the amount due from the polleyhalders of KD 6,210,596 (KD 5,202,981 - 31
Dacember 2018) and Qard Hassan to policyholders amounting to KD 1,483,111 (KD
1,463,111 — 31 December 2018) after deducting the provision for due from policyholders
amouniing o KD 434 574 and provision for Qard Hassan lo policyhelders amounting to
KD 162,600 (KD 434 574 and KD 162,500 respectively — 31 December 2018), The
Management did not consider the impairment of such balances as al 31 December 2020
as required undes the fntemational Financial Reporting Standards. Qualified apinion was
expressed in the audited consolidated financial siatements for the year ended 31
December 2015 regarding this matter, We were unable o complete our review of these
balances ag at 31 December 2020. Had we been able io complete our review of such
balances, matters might have come to our attention indicating that adjusiments might ba
nacassary to the audited consolidated financial statomentis.

ASSURANCE, TAX AND CONSULTING
et Tily Finm i Kuweail i2:8 mermibser of the Baker Tily imenasonal notwork, the imembers of which e separate ard indépenden lngal entilies,
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2. The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
include the policyholders’ accounts and other receivables of KD 3,182 521 (KD
1,328,102 — 31 December 2019) and premiums receivable of KD 1,514,824 (KD
1,608,781 — 31 December 2013) respectively, representing balances brought forwarnd
from previous years in addition to the balance movement during the year. The
Managemeani did not consider the impairment thereof as reguired under the International
Fimancial Reporting Standards. We were unable to complete our review of these
balances as at 31 Decamber 2020, Had we been able to complate aur review of such
balances, matters might have come to our attention indicating that adjustments might be
necessary to the audited consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (15As). Cur
responsibilifies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consoclidated Financlal Statements section of owr repot. We are
Indepandent of the Group in accordanca with the Internafional Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Efhics for Professional Accountands (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilted our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. Wa balieve that
ther audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
gualified opinion.

Kay Audit Matters

Key audif matters are those matters thal, in cur professional judgment, were of the most
slgnificance in owr audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cument year. These
matlers were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
a5 a whole, and in forming cur apinion thereon, and we do nof provide a separate opinion an
thesa mattars, We have Identified the matiers described below as the key audit matter;

Valuation of Investment properties

The Group's investment properties represent a significant parl of the lofal assets and
comprise of buildings cutside Kuwail. The valuation of invesiment properties is a significant
judgment area requiring a numbaer of assumptions Including capital returns, future rental
Incoma, occupancy rates, rght of use confract parieds and ranawability. Changes In these
essumptions and judgments could lead to significant movements in valuation of investment
proparties and consequently unrealized galns or loases n the consolidatad statement of
profit or loss, The Group's disclosuras about its investrment properties are included in Note
12.

Dur audit procedures included asseasing the appropriatenass of the Managemant's process
for reviewing and asseasing the work of the axternal valuer including the Management's
consideration of competence and independance of the extarnal valuer, We also assessed
the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies used in assessing the fair value of tha
imsestment properfies including discussions with the Managemeni and challenging the
estimates, essumplions and valuation methodology used in asseszing the fair value of
imfestrment properties. We also obtained the underlying information provided by the
Management to the independent valuer to confirm that it was cansistant with the information
obtained during our audit.
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Other information included in the Group's Annual Report for the financial year ended
3 December 2020

Management is responsible for the other Information. Other information comprises the
information included in the Group's Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 Dacember
2020, other than the consolidated financial statemeants and our auditor's report tharaon.

Ve obtained the Report of the Parent Company's Board of Directors, prior to the date of our
auditor's report, and we expect fo obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after
the dale of cur audifor's report.

Our opinion on the consclidated financial siatemants does not cover the other Infarmation
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financlal statements, our rasponsibility s to
read the other information idenfified above and, in doing so, consider whather the ather
information is materially inconsistent with the consclidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtaned during the audit or ofherwise appears to be matenally misstated. H,
based on the work wa have performed, we conciude that there is @ material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Managemeant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidaled
financial statements In accordance with IFRSs, and for such imtemal condrol as the
Management delarminas is nocessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statemants that are frae from material misstatement, whether due to frawed or error.

In praparing the consofidated financial stalements, the Management is responsible for

gesessing the Group's abilty %o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matiers reiated to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
management aither intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but b do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives ars to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financlal
statements as a whole are free from material miestatemeant, whether dus to fraud or errar,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
leval of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As
will always detect a material mizstatement when it exisis. Misstetements can arise from fraud
ar error and are considerad material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expacted io infleance the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.



@ pakerti lly

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and malntain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

a, Identify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficiant and appropriate to
provide @ basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a8 materal misstatement
resulfing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud meay involve
collusion, forgery, Irdentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemide of internal
contnol,

b. Obfaln an understanding of internal control relevant io the audit in order to design auwdit
procedures that are. appropriate in the circumstances, but nof for the purpose of
axprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's intemal contral.

¢, Evaluate the appropriateness of ascounting policies used and the reasconableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Managemant

d. Condude on the appropriateness of ihe Management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether 8 material uncertalnty
axists related to avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material uncedainty exisis, we are
required to draw altention in our auditor's repert to the related disclosures In the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our
auditor's report. Howeaver, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease to
continue as a going concern.

e, Evaluate the overall presenlation, structure and contenl of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consofdatad financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

f. Obfain sufficient appropriata audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial stalements, We are rasponsible for tha direction, supervision and parformance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsibie for eur audit opinion.

Wea communicate with those chargad with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audi findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement thal we have compliad
with ralevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
al relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
indapandence, and where applicabls, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that wera of most significance in the audit of the consofidated financial statements of
the currant year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matber or
when, in extremaly rare clrcumstances, we deiermine that 2 malter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expecied to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent
Company and the consolidated financial stalements, together with the contents of the report
of the Parent Company's Board of Directors relatng to these consolidated financial
statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all informaton that is required by the
Companies Law MNa. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the
Parent Company's Memorandum and Articles of Assoriation, as amended, thal an inventory
« was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no viclations of the
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, or of the Parent
Company's Memorandum and Arlicles of Association, as amended, have ocourred during the
year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on the business or
financial position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, wa have not become awara of any
violations of the provisions of Law Mo, 7 of 2010 conceming the Establishment of Capital
Markets Authority and its Executive Regulations, as amended, or of Law Mo, 125 of 2015
conceming the Regulation of Insurance during the year anded 31 December 2020 that might
hava had a matetial effect on the business or the financial position of the Parent Company,
except for the following:

Viclation of Ministry of Commerce & Industny’s Resolution Mo, 13 of 2020 issuing the
Execuiiva Regulations of Law No. 103 of 2018 concerning the Practice of the Auditors
Profession, with respect to the appointment of an actuary registered with the Insurance Unit
as the Company appointed Dr. Ahmed Al-Sayed Mustafa Muharram Firm, where the actuary
is not registered in the Insurance Unit's Register of Actuaries as at 31 December 2020,

r—
s o Hay,

Ali Mohamad Al-Hamad gy
Licensa Ma. 111-4 " 1
All Al-Hamad & Partners by G

Independant member of Baker Tilly International

State of Kunwait, 02 March 2021



Wathag Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.P)

and its Subsidiaries

State of Kuwait
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020
(Al amounts are In Kuwal Dinar)

3 Decambeor I Decamber

Note 2020 2019
Assats
Cash and cash equivalents Fil 11,169 10,174
Invastment depoails T 196,585 52,000
Finencial assets at fair value th h prafit or
s roug 223,337 227,303
Financial assats at fair value through other
comprehensiva income " g 931,784 1,112,906
Amoaunt dug from policyholders 10 6,310,696 6,292 6981
Card Hassan fo policyholders 11 1,463,111 1,463,111
Investment proparies 12 2,828,384 25911,070
Property and equipment 6,415 .
cther receivables 9,340 &,602
Total asseis 11,980,701 12 .ﬂ?ﬁlﬂ?
Equity and liabiliiaa
Equity
Share cagital 13 14,025,000 11,026,000
Share pramium 13 T340, 837 7,340,837
Treasury shans 13 (50,489) (B0, 489)
Troasury Sharnes Msere 3,508 3,508
Statutory reserve 14 388,138 388,139
Woluntany resere 14 3BB,139 388,139
Fair value resarve {354,218) {442,170
Foreign curmency transiation reserve 163 (1,262.478)
Employess’ siock option plan reserve 65,964 65,964
Accumulated losses (6,917,421) (5,385,661)
Total equity 11,889,712 12,050,988
Liabilities
Other payables 80,989 25,248
Total liabilities 90,988 26,248
11,980,704 12,078,237

Total equity and liabilities

alrman

rahman Khalifa Al-Shayji

e
Abdullah Meshar Ahmad Al-Humaidhi
Vice Chairman

The notes an pages 8 to 62 form an integral part of these consolidatad financial siaiements




Wathag Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.F)

and ifs Subsidianas
State of Muwait

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 December

2020

(AN amounts ae in Kuwaitl Dinar)

Rewvenue

Change in fair valua of financial assets at fair value
throwgh proftt or loss
Met change in fair value of investment propearties

Fental income

Dividernd mcomsa
Income from investment deposits
Gains on foreign exchange differancas

CHhar income

Loss on revalustion of invastmant propertias

Expenses

Feneral and administrative expenses
Loss on dispesal of subsidiany

Loss for the year
Basic and dilutéd loss per share (Fils)

Mote

12

]

15

2020 2019

(3,966) 2,875

. (48 668)

94,224 20,000

8,411 8,788

9,510 10,668

9,352 i

401 .

(82,686) -
35,246 (5,337)
{30,412) (81,783)
(1,282,478) 5
(1,312,890) (81.783)
_11.277,844) (87,120
{11.60) {0.78)

The notes on pages B to B2 form an integral pan of these consciidated financlal statements

')



YWethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.F)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for the financial year ended
31 December 2020
(AN amoints are in Kuwail Dinar)

.z 2019
Loss for the financial year {1,277 644) (87,120)
Other comprehensive income:
ermns that may be reclassified subseguently fo the
consolidated stalemeant of proflt or loss:
Exchange differences arsing on transkation of foreign 153 287 552
opearations
153 287 552
flerns that will not be reclassified subsequently lo
consofidated stafement of profif or loss:
Meat change in fair value ariging during the year _115'5,25;4}_ - 36,304
(166,264) 36,304
Total other compressive (loss) income (166,111} 223,855
Total compressive {loss)/ income for the year (1,443,755) 236,738

The notes on pages 6 ta B2 form an integral part of these consclidatad financlal staterments
3
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Wethag Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.F)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

{All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar}

Cash flows from operating activities:

Lozs for the year

Adjustments for:

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or koss

Income from imvestment deposits

Loss on disposal of subsidiany

Dividend income

Change in fair value of investment propertes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other receivables

Other payablas

Amaunt due from policyvholders

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Praceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehansive income

Purchase of investmants at fair valus through peofit or
loss

Purchasa of property and equipment

Gams received from investment deposils

Maovemeant in investment deposiis

Divadands received

Met cash (used in) / generated from investing
activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2020 2048
(1,277.644) (87,1200
3,966 {2,875}
{9,510 (10,668}
1,282,478 =
(8,411) (a,788)
_ B268E 48,668
73,565 (61.783)
(2,738) 508
65,894 (3,189)
(17,615) {1,307.091)
119,108 {1,371,554)
14,968 555 241
: (13,059}
(6,415) =
9,510 10,668
(144,585) 810,000
B,411 9,768
(118,111) 1,372,738
- gos 1184
10,174 5,990
11,169 10,174

The nolis on pages 6 to 82 form an integral part of these consclidated financial stalements
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Incorporation and activities

Wethag Takaful Insurance Company (the "Parent Company) & a Kuwaiti Public
Shareholding Company that was incorporated on 31 July 2000 and is registered
under the Insurance Compantas and Agents Law No. 24 of 1961, as amended, The
Parent Company's shares are ksted on Boursa Kuwait.

The amendments were registered in the Commarcial Register under Mo, 82421 on 11
June 2014, The shares of the Parent Company were listed on Boursa Kuwait on 20
Dacermber 2004, The Parent Company is supervisad by Capltal Markets Authority.

On 1 September 2019, the new Insurance Law No, 125 of 2019 was issued and came
into force on 28 August 2019, Thie Law shall supersede Law No. 24 of 1961. Tha
Executive Ragulations of the new Law has not been issuad until the issuancea date of
thesa consolidated financial staterments.

The Group compriges the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as disclosed in Note
6.
The Parent Company is a subsidiary of the Investment Dar Company (K.5.C.C)
("Ultimate Parent Company”).

The objectives for which the Parant Company is incorporated are as follows:

First: Carry on- all Takaful mutual and reinsurance business of all forms in
accordance with the provisions of Islamic Sharia and governing laws.

Second: To achieve its above mentioned objectives and as per its Aricles of
Association, the Parent Company shall have authority to conduct the following
business and acts as the Board of Directors deems appropriate:

a- Meoguire and gain the right to all or any part of moveable or immovable properties,
as it deems necassary, or any privileges that the Company beleves fo be
necassary or appropriate for its business or required for growing its funds.

b= Carry out transactions and emtar inta all contracts with all legal dispositions as it
deems necessary and suitable to achieve and facilitate iz objectives on the
conditions it elects,

c- Purchase, sell, morigage, kease, replace, possess or endorse in any manner
whatsoever any lands, real estate properties, securities, sukuk, stocks or any
other moveable or real estate property, or sell, leasa, mortgage or dispose off all
or part of the company's moveable or real estate proparty and funds.

d- Provide advizsories and conduct technical studies in insurance of reinsurance
industry for companies and other entities direclly interested in aengaging in
Takaful insuranca or reinsurance business,

g- Act as valuer or appraiser in Insurance industry and agent for insurance or
reinsurance companias to perform all activities thaet are consistent with the
Islamic Shara after abtaining the necessary kcensas,




Wethaq Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.F)
and its Subsidiares
State of Kuwait

Maotes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December

2020
(Al amounts are in Kuwaill Dinar uniess otherwize staled)

f-  Invest all or part of the Company’'s moveable property or real estate properties in
differant sectors as it deems appropriate in accordance with governing laws and
resafutions.

g- Merge with, incorporate or participate in incorparaling and subscribing for shares
in companies, buy and sell companies, shares and suppert them in any form in
line with the Company's objectives as per applicabla laws.

h- Utilize the financial surpluses available with the Company through investing the
same m financial portfolios managed by specialied companias and entities.

The Parent Company may cary out the above-mentioned businesses in the State of
Kuwalt or abroad directly or through agency. The Parent Company may have an
interast or participate in any way with the entities that engage in similar business that
halp it achieve its objectives in Kuwail or abroad and it may establish, paricipate.
purchasa, meange with such entities.

Takaful is an Islamic altemstive to @ conventional Insurance and investment
programs, based on the mutual funds concept, whare each policyholder will receve
his share in the surpius arising from the insurance activities, in accordance with the
Parent Company's articles of association and the approval of Fatwa and Sharia
Supervisory Board.

The Parent Company conducts business on behall of the policyholders and advances
funds to the policyholders' operations as and whan required. The shareholders are
responsible for liabilities incurred by policyholders in the event the policyhaolders' fund
is in deficit and the operations are liquidated.

The Parent Company holds the physical custody and title of all assets related to the
policyholders' and shareholders” operations. Such assets and liabilities together with
the results of policyholders’ lines of business are disclosad in the notes.

The Parent Company maintzins separate books of accounts for poficyholders and
sharaholders. Income and expenses clearly attributable to elther activity are recorded
in the raspective accounts. The Management and the beoard of directors determine
the basis of allocation of expenses from joint operations.

All takaful insurance and invesiment activilies are conducted in accordance with
Islamic Sharia, as approved by Fatwa and Sharia Supervisory Board.

The address of the Parent Company's registered office is the State of Kuwait, Shag,
Khaled Ibn Al-Waleed Street, City Tower, Floor 11.

The consolidated financizl statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on 02 March
2021.

Basisz of preparation

These consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") promulgatad by the International
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Accounting Standards Board ("ASE"), and Interpretations issued by the International
Financial Raparting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASE.
Changes in accounting policies

New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards, which became
effectiva for the current year

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those used in the pravious year except for tha application of the
following new and revised standards izsued by International Accounting Standards
Board (1A5B) during the year

Effect of initial adoption of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments o
IFR5 9 and IFRS 7)

In September 2019, the |ASE issued Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7). These amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges
during the period of uncerlainty before the hedged items or hedging mstruments
affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result of the on-
going interest rate benchmark reforms. The adoption of these amendments had no
material impact on the financial statements of the Company as the Company has no
hedging relationships.

Effect of initial adoption of Covid-19-Related Rent Concesslons (Amendment to
IFRS 16)

In May 2020, tha IASE issued Covid-13-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to
IFRS 16) that provides practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
occurning as a direet conseguence of COVID-19, by Introducing a practical expedient
to IFRS 16. The practical expedient permits a lessee 1o elect not to assess wheather a
COVID-19-related rent concesslon is a lease modification. A lessea that makes this
election shall account for any change in lease paymants resulting from the COVID-
19-related rent concassion the same way it would account for the change applying
IFRS 16 if the change wers not a lsase maodification. The practical expedient appbes
anly to rent concessions oscuring as a direct consequanca of COVID-12 and only If
all of the following conditions are mat:

= The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that
is substantially the ssme as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change,

«  Any reduction in lease payments affects only paymenis orginally dua on or
before 30 June 2021 (& rent concession meets this condition if it results in

. reduced |ease payments on or before 30 June 202% and increased kease

paymaents that extend beyond 30 Juns 2021); and

« There is no substantive change to ather erms and conditions of the lease.

The adaption of these amendments had no materal impact on the consolidated
financizl siaterments of the Group.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that 1o be considered & business, an integrated set of
activitles and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The |ASE also
ciarifies that a business can exist without Including all of the inputs and processes
neadad to create outputs, That is, the inputs and processes applied to those inputs
must have ‘the ability to contribute to the creation of outputs’ rather than ‘the ability to
create outputs’. The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that
permits 8 simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not & business. Undar the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business i substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated In a single identifiable assal or group of similar assets.
These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS

The Group has adopted the amendments includad in Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards for the first time (n the current vear,
The amandments include consequential amendments to affected Standards so that
they refer fo the new Framework. Not all amendments, however, update those
pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the Framework 5o that
they refer to the revised Concaptual Framawork,

The Standards which ars amanded are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS &, IFRS 14, 148 1, IAS
8, |AS 34, IAS 37, 1AS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 18, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

Amendments to LAS 1 and IAS & Definition of Material

The Group has adopted the amendmeants to 1AS 1 and 1AS 8 for the first time In the
currant year, The amendments make the definition of material in [AS 1 easier to
understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concapt of materlality in IFRS
Standards, The concepl of 'obscuring' materal information with  immatérial
information has been included as part of the new definition,

The definition of material influencing users has been changead from ‘could influence’ to
‘could reasonably be expected 1o influence’. The threshold for materiality in [AS B has
been replaced by a reference fo the definition of material in 1AS 1. In addition, the
I8SE amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that confain a
definition of ‘material’ or refer fo the term ‘material to ensure consistency.

3-2  |IASB Standards Issued but not yet effactive

At the date of suthorization of these consolidated financial statements, certain new
standards, amendments and interpretations have been published by the |ASE but are
not yet effective, and have not been aarly adopted by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relavant pronouncements will be adopied in
the Group's accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of
tha pronauncements. Information on new standards, amandments and interpretations
that are expected to be relevant to the Group's consolidated financial statemeants is
provided below. Certaln other new standards and interpretations have been issued
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but are not expected to have a8 materal Impact on the consolidated financial
slatamenis of the Group.

Mew and revised IFRSs

Amendmenis 1o JAS 1 - Classification of Ligbilties as

Effective for
annual pericds
beginning on or
after

The amendments

Curent or Mon-currant ara appled

The amendments to |AS 1 affect only the presentation of mmsﬁm;;ﬂ-" far

liahiliies @s current or non-currant in the statement of E:”ﬁlp* %

financial position and not the amount or timing of ﬂg 1 E otabead

recognition of any assetl, liability, income or expenses, or ;02'3 jt;'"mﬁ"

the information disclosed about those items. = MT ey
application
permitted,

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as curent or non-currant is based on rghts that are in
axigtance at the end of the reporting perod, specify that
classificatton is unaffected by expectations about whather
an entity will exercise its right to defer setlernent of a
limbility, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are
complied with at the end of the reporting pericd, and
infroduce a definition of ‘settlement’ fo make clear that
settiemant refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instrumants, other receivables or services.

Amandments fo IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment—

1 January 2022,

Proceeds before infended Lises with earty
ol : application
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an parmitted.

item of properly. plant and equipment any proceeds from
sefling items produced before that asset is availabie for use,
Le. procesds while bringing the assel to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Conseguently, an entity
recognises such sales proceeds and relsted costs in profit
or loss. The entity measures the cost of those fems in
accordance with 1AS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarfy the meaning of ‘testing
whether an asset is functioning properly’. IAS 16 now
spacifies this as assessing whether the technical and
physical pedformance of the assel is such that it is capable
of being used in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental 1o others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of other
comprehensive Income, the financial statemants shall
disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in prafit
or loss that relate to tems produced that are not an output
af the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item{s) in
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the statement of other comprehensive income includais)
such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to
iterns of property, plant and eguipment that are brought to
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management on or
after the beginning of the eariest period presented in the
financial statermants in which the entity first applies the
amendments.

The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the emandments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or cther component of equity,
as appropriate) at the beginning of thal earlest period

prasentad
Amendmenis fo IAS 37 = Onerous Gonlracts — Cost of 1 January 2022,
Fulfiling & Contract with early

The amendments specy that the 'cost of fulfiing' a  2PPICalan
contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly fo the PEATTMREE,
contract’, Costs that relate direcily to a contract consist of

both the incremental cosfs of fuffilling that contract

(examples would be direct labour or materals) and an

allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling

contracts {an example would be tha allocation of the

depraciation charge for an item of properly, plant and

equipment used in fulfiling the contract).

The amendmeants apply to contracts for which tha entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporiing period in which the antity first applies tha
amendmentz, Comparatives ara not restated. Instead, tha
antity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendmants as an adjustment to the opaning
batance of retained earnings or other companent of equity,
as appropriate, al the date of initial application,

Annual Improvemants to IFRS Standards 2078-2020 cycle 1 January 2022,

Tha annual improvemants include amendments o several with aaﬁn

Slandards: appinla
permitted.

IFRS 1 First-fime Adoption of Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards

The amendment provides a subsidiary that becomas a first-
time adopter later than its parent with an exemplion relating
to the accounting for cumulative translation differances. As
g result of this amendment, a subsidiary that uses the
examption in IFRS 1: D16(a) may also slect ino measura
cumulative translation differences for all foreign operafions
at the camying amount that wouid be Included in the

"
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4-1

parent's consolidated financial statements, based on the
parent's date of transition to IFRSs, if no adjustmants were
made for consolidation procedures and for the effecis of the
business combination in which the parent acquired the
subsidiary. A similar elaction is availabla to an associate or
joint venture that uses the exemplion in IFRS 1: D16(a).

IFRS 9 Financial Insfruments 1 January 2022,

The amendment clarifies that when applying the 10 per :rlhuﬁz?;n

cent’ test in assessing whether 1o derecognize a financial meiﬂa d

lishilty, the entity includes only the fees paid or received  F :

between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including

fees paid or received by either the entity or lender on the

other's behalf,

The amendmant shall be applied prospectively to

modifications or exchanges occurring on or after the date

on which the entity first applies the amendment.

IFRS 16 Leasas Mo effective data is
dafinad.

The amendment removes the iiustration of reimbursemant
of keasehold improvements.

The management does not expact that the application of the above standards and
interpretations will have & material impact on the consofidated financial statements of

the Group in future periods,

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policles adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set oul below.

Bazsis of preparation

These consohidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinar ("KD"), which
is the functicnal and presentation currency of the Parent Company and are preparad
under the historical cost convention, except for investments at fair valus through profit
of loss, investments at fair valua through other comprehansive income and
investment properties, which are measured at fair value,

The Group has elected to present the “statement of proft or joss and other
comprehensive income” in two sepamate statements: the "statement of profit or loss®
and "statement of profit or loss and other comprahansive income”,
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4-2

Basis of consolidation

The Parent contrals a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, o vanable returns from
if3 involvamant with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those refums through
its power over the subsidiary. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
consolidated whan the Parent Company contrals a subsidiary and the consoiidation
will cease when the Parent Company loses control over the subsidiary. The financial
statemants of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates, which are typically not
more than three months from that of the Parent Company, using consistant
accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the effect of any significant
fransactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the
Paren! Compamy's financial statements.

All transactions and balances betwsen Group companies are eliminated on
consolidation, including unrealized geins and losses on transactions between Group
companies. Whera unrealized losses on intra-Group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for Impairment from a Group
perspective, Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure censistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of Bubgi:li.a.riaﬁ acquired or disposed of
during the year are recognisad from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the
affective date of disposal, as applicable,

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a
subsidiary’s profit or loss and net assets that is not held by the Groug.

The Group attributes total comprehansive income or loss of subsidiaries between the
owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
awnership intarests.

When a controlling interast in the subsidianes is disposad off, the difference betwaen
the seliing price and the net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and
goodwlll is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or lozs. The fair value of
any investment retainad in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
ragarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS
& when applicable, ar the cost on initial recognition of an nvestmant in an associale
or a joint venture. However, changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, The carmying
amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative inferests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
batween the amount by which the noncontrofling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the considarstion paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.
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-3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations.
The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
lighilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair
value of any assat or liability arising from a contingent consideration arangemeant.
Acguisifion costs are expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the
acouirer recognizas the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable nel assats. If tha business
combination is achieved in stapes, the acguisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previcusly held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisiton date through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group recognises idenfifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed in &
business combination regardlesa of whather they have been previously recognised in
the mcquirea’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and
liabdities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is
calculated as the axcess of the sum of a) the fair value of the consideration
transferrad, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest In the acquiree
and c) the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree,
owver the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable nel aszats. If the fair values of
identifiable net assats excesd the sum calculated above, the excass amount {La. gain
on a bargain purchasae) is recegnised in the consolidated statement of profil or loss
immediately.

4-4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination
that are not individually identifled and separstely recognised. For information on how
goadwlll Is initially determined, poodwil is camied at cost less accumulsted
impalrment losses followed by impalrment testing procadures,

4-5 Dividend Income
Dividend income, other than those from associates, are receqnised at the time the
right to receive paymeant is established,

4-6 Rental income
Rental Income is recognised on a siralght-line basis over the term of the lease.

4-7  Income from investment deposits

Income from investment deposit & recognised on & time proportion basis taking
account of the principal outstanding and profit rate applicable.
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4-8

4-9
4-9-1

4-9-2

4-9.3

4-9-4

410

Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recogniged in the consolidated siatement of profit or loss
upon utiiization of the service or at tha date of their onigin,

Taxation
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribufion o KFAS is calcuiated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group in
accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation's Board of
Directors’ Resolution, which states that income from associates and subsidiaries,
Board of Directors’ remuneration, transfer to statutory reserva shoulkd be excluded
from profit for the year whan detarmining the contribution,

National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

MLST is caloulated in accordance with Law Mo, 19 of 2000 and the Minister of
Finance Resolution MNo. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group for the year
after deducting Board of Diractors’ remuneration for the year, As per the Law, incoma
from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies, which ara
subjected to NLST have to be deducted from the profit for the year,

Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculsted at 1% of the profit of the Group In accordance with
the Minigtry of Finance Resolution No. 5812007 effective from 10 Decembar 2007. For
the year ended 31 Decamber 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Parent Company has
no liabilities towards KFAS due to accumulated losses. Under the MLST and Zakat
regulations, na carry forward of losses to the future years or any cary back to prior
year is parmitted.

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries i calculated on the basis of the tax rates
applicable and prescribed according to the prevailng laws, regulations and
instructions of the countries where these subsidiaries oparate.

Segment reporting

The Group has two operating sagments: lakaful insurance and investment. In
identifying these operating segments, the Management generally follows the Group's
garvice lines representing its main products and services. Each of these oparating
segments is managed separately as each requires different approaches and other
resources, All inter-segmeant transfers are camed out at arm's length prices.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those
used in its consolidated financial statements. In additton, assets or liabilitias, which
are nat directly attributable to the business activites of any opersting segment, are
net allocated to a2 segment,

1b
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial kabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a
party 1o the contractual provisions of these instrurments,

Financial assets and financial ligbilities are initially measured at falr valuae.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issua of financial
assets and financial labilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through other comprehensive income) are added to or deducied from the fair
value of the financial assets of financial liabiities, as approprate, on nitial
recognition. Transaction costs dirsctly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at feir valua through profit or loss are recognized immedistely in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assels are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or saes of financial assets thal require delivery of assets within the fimeframe
astablished by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsaquently measured in-thelr entirety at elther
amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financlal asseis

Debt instruments that meet the following condtions are subsequently measured at
amaortized cost:

s The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald
financial assets in order o collect contractual cash flows; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give risa on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and intarest on the principal amouant
outstanding.

Debt instruments that maet tha following conditions are subsequently measured &t
FVTOCH:

+« The financial assat ks held within & business model whosa objective is achieved
by bath collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assels; and

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstamding.

By defaull, all other financial assets are subsequently measurad at FVTPL.
Daspite the foregoing, the Group may make the following imevocable election at inftizl
recognition of a financial asset:

= The Company may krevocably elect to classifying subsequent changes in fair
valus of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria
are met; and
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» The Company may imevocably designate a debt investment that mests the
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at fair value through profit or loss
if doing so eliminates or gignificanily reduces an accounting mismatch,

Amortized cost and effective Inferest mefhod

Tha affactive Interest method is @ method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant periods.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash recaipts (Including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effeclive inlerest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credil losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
wheare approprale, a shorer period, to the gross camying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
pssats, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounding the
estimated fulure cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of
the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortized cosl of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measurad at initlal recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
emodization using the affective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance, On the other hand,
the gross carmrying amount of a financial asset is the amorized cost of a financial
aeget before adjusting for any loss aliowance.

Interast incaome s recognized using the affective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsaquently al amortized cost and at FVTOC!, For financial Instruments
other than puechased or onginated credit-impaired financis! assets, interast income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate o the gross camying amount of a
financigl asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently becomea credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the amontized
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsaquent reporting periods, the cradit risk on the
credit-impalred financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
cradit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the aeffactive interest rate to
the gross carmying amount of the financial asset,

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assels, tha Group recognizes
inmerest income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the cradit risk of the financial
assat subsequently Improves 3o that the financial asset is ne longer cradit-impaired.

Interast Income is recognized in the consolidated statemant of profil or [0ss,




Waethaqg Takaful Insurance Company (K.5.C.P)
and its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December

2020
fAN amounts ane in Kuwaili Dinar uriess olherwise staled)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC!

On initial recognition, the Parent Company may make imevocable slection {on an
instrument-by-instrumant basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at
FVWTOCI. Designation at FVTOCGI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in & business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading IF:

» [t has bean acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

= Oninitlal recognifion, it is part of a portfolio of identifiad financial Instruments that
the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of
ghort-tarm profit taking; or

» |tis a derivative (excapt for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or &
designated and affective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
gaine and losses arsing from changes in fair vale recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to the consolidated siatemeant of other
comprehansive income on disposal off these invesiments, instead, they will be
transferred to retained eamings.

The Group has designated all mvestments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading as at FVTOCI on initial application of IFRS 9.

Dividends on these investmants are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the Group's right o receive the dividerds is established in accordance
with |1AS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividands are included in the “investment income” line item in
tha consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The camying amount of financial assets that are deneminated in a foreign currency is
determined in that forelgn currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each
raporling period, specifically,

For equity instruments measured at FWTOCI, exchange differences are recognized in
other compraehensive income in the investment revaluation reserve.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Group applied the simplified approach and measures the loss allowance for
receivables al an amount egual to lfstime ECL. The expected credit losses on
receivables are estimated wsing a provision matrix by reference to past defaull
experence of the deblor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the dablore, general eccnomic conditions of
the industry in which the deblors operate and an assassmant of both the current as
wall as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

18
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The Group writes off receivables when there is infermation indicating that the debior
iz in sevare financizl difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the receivables are aver two years past due.

The Group applies the general approach to providing for expected credit losses
orescribed by IFRS 8, for financial instruments in cash and bank balances. The
Company uses extemal rating agency credit grades for assessing credit risk on these
financial assets and these published grades are continuously monitored and updated,

Derecognition of financial asseis

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to anather party. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained Interest
in the asset and an associated liahility for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a trangferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recogniza the financial asset and also racognizes a
coltateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial essal measured st amodized cosl, the difference
betwaen the asset's camying amount and the sum of the considaration received and
receivable is recognized In consolidated statement of profit or loss,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and aquity Instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial
ligbilities or as equity In accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Eguity instrumeants

An aquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assats of
an antity after deducting all of its liabllities. Equity instrumants issued by an entity are
recognized at the proceeds received, nel of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted
directly in equity. Mo gain or less is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
Instruments,

Financial llabilifies

All financial iabilities are subsequenily measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest mathad or at fair vales through profit or loss.

13
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Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial lighilities that are not classified under the following items, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective inferest method:

1- contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
2- held-for trading, or
3- designated as at fair value through profit or koss.

The effactiva interest method is a8 method of calculating the amorized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevent period. The
effective interast rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, ransaction costs and ather premiums or discounts) through
the expected fife of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter perlod, to
the amortized cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial llabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured
at amorized cost at the end of each reporting period, the forelgn exchange gains and
lozees are determined based on the amodized cost of the Instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in the ‘other gains and losses” line item in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for financlal liabdities that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial iiahilities

The Group derecognizes financial liablliies when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial Bability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable, 1= recognized in the consclidated staterment of profit or loss.

Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessmant purposes, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash generafing units). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for Impalrment and some are fested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
axpecled lo benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent
tha lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill, Cash-
genarating units to which goodwill has been allecated (determined by the Group's
management as equivalent to its opersting segments) are tested for impairment at
ieast annually,
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Al other individual assals or cash-generating units are tested for Impairment
whenever events or changes in clircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
assel's or cash-genersting unit's carrying amount exceads its recoverabla amount,
which ke the higher of fair value lass costs to sell and valus-in-use. To determine the
value-in-usa, the Managemeant estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-
genarating unit and determines a suttable interest rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures
are dirsctiy linked 1o the Group's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to
exclude the affacts of fulure reorganizetions and asset enhancements. Discount
factors are determined Individually for each cash-gemerating unit and reflect
management's assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and assst-
specific risks faciors,

Investment properties

Investment properies are properties held to earn rentals and’ or for capital
appreciation, and are accounted for using the fair value model,

Investment properfies are Initially measured at cosl. Subsequently, Investment
properties are revaluad annually and are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair values. These values are supportad by market avidence
and are determined by external professional valuers with sufficient experience with
raspect lo both the location and the nature of the investment property. Any gain or
loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale of an invesiment
property Is Immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loes
within "change in falr value of investment properties” and "gain/loss on sals of
invastment properties”.

Transfers are made to or from invaestmant properly only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from investiment properly to owner-accupied propary, the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value al the date of change in use. If owner-
occupied properly becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and eguipment up
to the date of change in use.

Leased assets

» The Group as a lesses

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Group considars
whether a8 confract iz, or contains a lease. & lease is defined as 'a contract, or par of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration’,

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

s the contract contains an identified asset, which s either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset i made
available to the Group
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s the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the sconomic banafits from
use of the identifled asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contraci

# tha Group has the right o direct the use of the identified assel throughout the
period of use. The Group assesses whether it has the right 1o direct ‘how and for
what purposa’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

The Group has elected to account for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value
agsets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a nght-of-use assal and
lease ligbility, the payments in relation fo thess are recognised as an expensa in profit
or loss on a siraight-line basis over the leasa term.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lesses

Al lease commencament date, the Group recognises a nght-of-use asset and a lease
lkability on the balance sheel measured as follows:

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is measured at cosl, which s made up of the initial
measurement of the lease Rability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the leasa, and
any lease payments made In advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received).

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Group depraciates the right-of-use assets on
a straight-ine basis from the lease commencement dale to the earlier of the end of
thie uselul life of the rght-of-use assel or the end of the lease term, The Group also
assasses the right-of-use esset for impairment when such indicators exist,

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Groups incremental
borrowing rate.

Lesse paymenis included in the measurement of the lease liability are mads up of
fixed payments (including In substance fixed), variable payments based on an index
or rate, amounis expected to be payable under a residual value guaraniee and
payments arising from cptions reascnably certain to be exercised,

Subsaguent to initial measuremant, the liablity is reduced for payments made and
increasad for interest. It is remeasurad to reflect any reassasement or modification, or
if there are changes in in-substance fived payments. When the lease labllity ls
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment s reflected in the right-of-use aszset, or
profit end loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced o zer.
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» The Group as a lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect o some of ils
investmant properties: The Group classifies ils leases as either operating or finance
leases. When the terms of a lease transfar substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the confract is classified as finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating loases.

When the Group isan intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head-lease and sub-
lsase as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as finance leasa or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use of asset arising from the head-lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over leasa
term. Initial direct cost incurred in amanging and megotiating a lease are added to the
carrying amount of the lease assets and recognised on a siraight-line basis over the
lease tarm.

Amounts dua under finance leases are recognized as receivables. Finance lease
income is allocated to the accounting perieds so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the Group's net investment outstanding for the finance lease.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parenl Company's own issued sharas that have been
reacquired by the Group. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost
mathod. Under this method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is
charged to a contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gaing are credited o & separate account in
equity, (the “treasury shares reserve”), which is nol distributable, Any realised losses
are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account.
Any excess losses are charged to retained sarnings then o the voluntary reserve and
statutory reserve. Mo cash dividends are paid on thesa shares. The issue of stock
dividend shares increases the number of treasury shares propodionately and reduces
the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Related party transactions

Related parties represent major shareholders, subsidiaries. directors and key
management personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these
transactions are approved by the Group's managemant.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Each entity In the Group determines its own functional curmency and items included in
the financial statemants of each enfity are measured using the functional currency.
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Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency lransactions are franslated into the functional currency of the
respectiva Group entity, using the exchange rates prevailing al the dates of the
transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monatary items
denominated in forgign currency al year-end exchange rates are recognisad in the
consolidated statement of profil or loss.

Mon-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical
cost (translated using the exchange rates al the transaction date), except for non-
monatary items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

In the Group's consolidated financial staterments, all assets, liabiliies and transactions
of Group entities with a functional currency other than the Kuwaiti Dinar are translated
into Kuwaiti Dinar upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities in the
Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities are transiated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing
rate at the raporting date. Income and expenses have been franslated into Kuwaiti
Dinar at the average rate over the reporing pericd. Exchange differences are
charged/oredited to consolidated statement of profit or loas and other comprehensive
income and recognised in the forelgn curmency franslation reserve in equily, On
disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulstive translation differences
recognised in consolidated statement of changes in equity are reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are recognisad as par of the gain or loss
on disposal,

Qard Hassan to policyholders

Qard Hassan represanta non-profit 1slamic financing provided by the sharehelders to
the policyholders with respesct to the deficlt adsing from the takaful operations which
will be settled from the surplus arising from such business in future years.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent llabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a preseni legal or constructive
obfigation as & result of a past event, it Iz probable that an outflow of sconomic
resources will be required from tha Group and amounts can be estimated reliably.
Timing or ameunt of the outflow may still b uncertalin.

Provisions ara measured at the estimated expenditure required to selile the present
chligation, based on the most reliable evidence avallable at the reporing date,
including the risks and uncerainties associated with the present obligation. Whars
therz is & number of similar obiigations, the likelihood that an outflow will be reguired
in settiement is determinad by considerng the class of olfigetions as a whole,
Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of monay is
material,
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Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are
disciosed whan an Inflow of economic benefits s probable.

Contingent liabilities ame notl recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position, but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
aconomic benefits is remota.

Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial staterments requires Group's
Management to make judgments, estimalions and assumptions that affect the
reparted amount of revenues, expensas, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent labilities, at the end of the raporting period. Howsver, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimaies could resull in outcomes that require & material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or habdity affected in future periods,

Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Group's Managament
has made the following significant judgments, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Business model assessment

The Group classifies financial assets after performing the business model test. This
test includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assats i evaluated and their performance measured and the risks
that affect the performance of the assets. Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous
assessment of whether tha business model for which the remaining financial assels
ara held continues to be appropriate and If it s not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so0 a prospective change to the classification of
those assals.

Classification of real estates

The Management decikles on aequisition of a real estate whether it should be
classified as trading proparty, properly under development or investmeant property.
The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in
the ordinary course of business.

The Group classifies property as property under development if it is acquired with the
intention of development.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it i acquired to generate
rantal income or for capifal appreciation.

Control assessment

When determining contral, the managemenl conskders whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of an investee on s own o generate
retums for self. The assessment of relevant activities and ability to use ts power o
affect variable return requires considerable judgament.
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Estimates uncertainty

information ebout estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on
recognition and measurement of assets, lisbilities, income and expenses is provided
below. Actual results may be substantially differant.

Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of estimated credit losses involves estimates of loss given default and
probability of default, Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in case of
default by customer. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default in
the future, The Group makes these estimates using reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information, which |s based on assumptions for the fulure movement
of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

An estimate of the collectible amount of frade accounts receivable is made when
collection of the full amount iz no longer probable. For individually significant
amounts, this estimation is performad on an individual basis. Amounts which are not
individually significant, but which are past dus, are assessed collectively and a
provision applied according te the length of tme past due, based on historical
racovery rates,

Fair value of financial instruments

The Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments whera aclive market quotes are not available, This requires the
Management to develop estimates and assumplions based on market inputs, using
obsarvable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
such data is not observable, management uses |t bost estimate. Estimated fair
values of financial nstruments may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investmeant properties at fair value, with changes in falr value
being recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group engaged
an indapendent valuation spacialist to determine fair value as at 31 Decambaer 2020
and the valuer has used valuation techniques to amive at these fair values. Thesa
estimated falr values of the investmant properties may vary from the actual prices thal
would be achieved in an amn's length transaction at the reporing data.
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6~ Subsidiaries
The details of subsidiaries are as follows;

Cremnership perceniage
Subsidiary’s Country of Principal - Y 4
narne Incorparation acivities aiaibias R
2020 2018
Consolidated
with
ghareholders
Wethag Real Arih Purchasa, sale,
EREE Republic of holez 4 : %08.40
rvestmeant Egypt EG:IU!EII.I!:IH af
Company lard in Egypt
Raz esiala
imvasiment and
Hala Real Estate Arab Tt
Investrant Republic af s ‘ %100 =
and lezsa of
Company (L.L.C) Egypt e S T ki
gccount ar third
parties
Consolidated
with
policyholders
Car rental and
Wared Rent a State of trading in cars
Car Company i and spare parts Y100 50535.32
(K.5.C.C) Kinwe in the State of
it

During the year, the Group completed the lquidation of Wethag Real Estate
Invesiment Company In Arab Republic of Egypt. This resulted in logs on disposal off

subsidiary amounting to KD 1,282,478

The financial statements of Wared Rent a Car Campany {K.5.C.C} and Hala Real
Estate Investment Company (LL.C) are consolidated based on the financial
stataments preparad by the managements of the subsidiaries.

The Parent Company's ownership percentage of Hala Real Estate Investment
Company {L.L.C) inclsdes 0.5% based on assignment of a parly in favor of the Parent

Compary.
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7= Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise of the following:

31 December 31 Decamber
2020 2019

Cash on hand and bank balances 11,168 10,174
Investiment deposits with  original
maturity within three to twelve months 1“'53:5_ o%080

207,754 62,174
Less: Investment deposits with original
maturity within three 1o twelve manths 138.580) (52,000)
Cash and cash eguivalents as per 11,169 10,174

consolidated statement of cash flows

Investment deposits carry annual effective interest rate of 6.213% (2019 from
2.625% ta 3.130%).

8- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 31 Decamber
N 2020 o 2019
Local quoted sacuritias 223,337 -
Local quotad sacurities held through
managed portolins = £27.303
223,337 227,303

8- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoma

31 December 31 Decamber
2020 2019
Local quoted securities 231,368 16,904
Local unquoted securities 278,708 78,263
Managed portiolios 156,138 714215
Managed funds 265,560 303614
831,764 1,112 996

» Managed funds are investments in units of privata equity funds. Fair value of
these investments is measurad based on the net asset value provided by the
respectiva fund managers, The Management believes the net assel value
provided by the fund managers represents the best estimate of the fair value
available for these investments. :

= A related party to the Group manages investment portiolios and funds owned by
the Parent Company amounting to KD 156,138 (31 December 2019: KD

536,067).
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10-  Amount due from policyholders

311 December 31 December
2020 2019
1|||+:|1:|"::;:E|E:n|n|g| balance at beginning of the 6,727,556 5,420 464
MNet movemants during the year 17,618 1,307,091
8,746,170 6,727,555
Less: Impairment (434,574} {434,574)
Closing balance at the end of the year 6,310,596 8,282 981

Met movements in palicyholders' account represent the net fund transfers from and to
their account in addition to the Management fees from policyholders. The Parent
Company's management had decided to reduce the Management fees charged o
policyhclders from 20% of gross premiums fo 20% of net profit of policyholdars o
anable settlement of the above due balances and also to sattle the Qard Hassan
halance (Note 11) in such & way thal ensures continuity of the Takalul insurance
activity of the policyholders.

11-  Qard Hassan to policyholders' fund

In line with the Aricles of Association, policyholdars’ net deficit from Insurance
actlvities has been coverad by the Qard Hassan from the shareholders. The Qard
Hassan provided by shareholders lo the policyholders will be seftied through the
axpected surplus from insurance activities in future years.

31 December 31 December
2020 2018
Gross amount 1,625,611 1,625.611
Lass: impairment (162,500) (162 500)
Cloging balance 1,463,111 1463111
12-  Investment properties
31 Decamber 31 Decamber
2020 2018

Camrying value at the beginning of the 2 811.070 5 675 166
:.fEEr ] L] 1 L]
Change in fair value during the year (82,666) (48,668}
Forelgn currency translation differences . 287,562

2,828,284 2,911,070

+» The investment property in Egypt amounting 1o KD 2,697 378 (31 December
2019; KD 2,724,387) is registerad in the name of a third party who issued power
of attomney to ather parties, which i ultimately granted to one of the Parent
Company's directors, whe previded an rrevocable general power of aliernay In
favor of the Parent Company. The propery is managed by a subsidiary, i.a. Hala
Real Estate Investment (L.L.C).
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s« Tha above Investment properties include a right of use of hotel apartments in
Zamzam Tower in Holly Mecea, the Kingdom of Sauwdi Arabia amounting to KD

131,006 (31 December 2019: KD 186.681).

The fair value of the Parent Company's investment properties as at 31 December
2020 was concluded based on the valuation conducted at that date by independent
valuers who ara not related to the Group,. The valuer has valid license in each of the
countries whera the investrment properties are located. Such valuers are licensed by
the officizl authorities and have appropriate gualifications and recent experience in
the valuation of properties In the relevant locations. In estimating the falr value of
these properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair value was astimatad according to the following levels:

e Leval 2: the falr value i= determined based on the comparative market prices for

tha araas whare the land and properlies are located

» Leval 3; the fair value is determined on the basis of the income capitalization

method,

The deteis of investment properfies and information about the fair value hierarchy as at

31 December are as follows:

Fair valua Fair value
Leval 2 Level 3 31 December 31 Decomber
2020 2013
invastment
praparty in
Egypt 2,697 378 = 2,697,378 2724 387
hotel
apartmanls
in Zamzam
Towar in
Holly Mecca e 131,006 131,006 185,683
Total ___ 2,697,378 131,006 2,828,384 2,911,070
13-  Equity

» The authorized, issued and paid-up share capital of the Parent Company as al 31
December 2020 comprises of 110,250,000 shares of 100 Fils each (31
December 2019: 110,250,000 shares of 100 Fils each). All shares are in cagh.

« Sha premium is not available for distribution.
* The Group holds treasury shares as detailed beow:
31 December 2020

31 Dan:_amtl-&r 2018

Mumber of shares 445 5040
Percentage of issued shares 0.40%
Market value (KDY &80
Cost (KO) 50,489

445 500
0.40%
10,692
90,489

The reserves equal to the cost of held treasury shares are not svailable for

distribution.
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14-

15-

16-

Statutory and voluntary reserves

In accordance with the Companles Law and the Parent Company's Adicles of
Association, 10% of the profit for the year before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors'
remuneration is to be fransferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company's
shareholders may resolve to discontinue such annual transfer when the resarve totals
50% of the paid-up share capital,

Dis'ributicn of the statutory reserve is limited fo the ameuwdt required to enable the
payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital to be made in years when
retained eamings are not sufficient for the distribution of a dividend of that amount.

in accordance with tha Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for
the year befora KFAS, Zakat, NLST and directors' remuneration is to ba transferred to
the voluntary reserve at the discretion of the Board of Directors subject o e
approval of the general assambly.

Thera ara no restrictions on the distribution of the valuntary reserve.

Mo transfers are required in a year in which the Parent Company has incurred a logs
or where accumulated losses exisL

Basic and diluted (loss) per share

The basic and diluted (loss) per share is computed through dividing the (loss) by
weighted sverage number of shares outstanding during the year (excluding the
freasury shares) as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

{Loss) for the year (KO _ (1277.644q) {87,120}
Mumber of shares 110,250,000 110,250,000
Less: weighted average number of

treasury shares cutstanding during the

year ; (445,600) _ {445,500)
Weighted average numbar of shares

outstanding during the year 108,804,500 108,804,500
Basic and diluted loss per share (Fits) {11.60) {0.79)

Shareholders’ general assembly

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company proposed not lo distribute any
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2020, and this proposal is subject to the
approval of tha general assembly of the Parent Company's shareholders.

On 18 June 2020, the general assembly of the shareholders approved the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the proposal of the Board of Directors not to distribute any dividends for the year
then ended. Alsg, the general assembly of the shareholders appraved nol 1o allocate
the Board of Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2015,
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17- Consolidated policyholders' results by line of business and fund

The significant accounting policies used in accounting for the insurance business are
sat out below, Policies used in accounting for other accounts and transactions are the
same as those adopted by the Group.

a- Revenue recognition
Premiums aarned

Premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they
relate on a pro-rata basis. Unearned premiums represent the portion of net
written premiums relating to the unexpired period of coverage thal extend beyond
the end of the financial year; they are calcutated based on a time apportionment
basis avar the exposure to palicies,

Policy issuance fees and policy acquisifion costs

Policy issuance fees and policy scquisition costs are racognisad at tha time of
recognition of the related premium.

b- Relnsurance

In the normal course of business, the Group cedes and assumes cortain levels of
risk in various areas of exposure with other insurance companies or reinsurers.
Such reinsurance includes quota share, excess of loss, facultative and other
forms of remsurance on essentially all lines of business,

Reinsurance caded or assumed are deducted from gross premium to arrive at net
written premium,

¢~ Claims

Claims, comprising amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and
related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries, are
charged to consolidated statement of policyholders' results as incurred. Claims
comprise the estimated amounts payable, in respect of claims reperad 1o the
Group and those not reported at the financlal position date. The Group generally
esfimates its claims based on previous experence. Independant loss adlustars
normally estimate property claims. In addiion, a provision based on the
Management's judgement and the Group's prior experience is maintained for the
cost of settling claims incurred but not reported at the consolidated finencial
position date. Any difference between the provisions at the consolidated finencial
position date and settlements and provisions for the followlng year is included in
the underwriting account for thal year,

d- Liability adeguacy test

At each consolidated fnancial position date, the Group assesses whether its
recognised Insurance liabilities are adequate using current estimates of future
cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessmant shows that the
carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related deferred policy acquisition
cosis) is fnadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is immediately recognised In the consolidaled statament af
policyholders' result and an unexpired risk provision created
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f-

The Group does not discount its hability for unpaid claims as substantially all
claims are expected o be paid within cne year of the consolidated financial
posiion date.

Premium and reinsurance recelvables

These receivables are staled at original invoice amount less allowsnce for any
uncollectible smounts, An estimate for doubtful debt is made when collection of
tha full ariount is no longer probable. Bad debls are written off as incurred,

Equipmant

Equipment are initialty recognised at scquisition cest including any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operafing in the manner intendad by the Group's Management.
Equipmenl is subsequently measured using the cost model, cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment lesses. Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line
basis to write down the cost less estimated residual value of eguipment. The
useful life and depreciation meathesd are reviewsd pericdically to ensure that the
method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benafits ansing from items of equipment.

The foliowing useful lives are applied:

«  Buildings: 20 years

« Eguipment: 5-8 years

+ Vehicles: 4-5 years

Material residual value estimates end estimales of useful life are updated as
required, but at least annually.

Whan azsets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are
aliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is
recognised in the consclidated statement of policyholders’ results.

Life takaful mathematical reserve

The provision for life takaful contracts is calculated on the basis of an acluarial
valuation method.

Additional reserve

The additional reserve incluges amounts reserved for claims Incurred But Mot
Reparted ("IBNR") at the financial position-date in addition to other contingencies
and any differances that may arise. Provision based on the Management's
judgemant and the Group's prior experence s maintained for the cost of settling
claims incurrad but not reported at the financial position date.
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=

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits lo ils employees. The entitiement to
these benefits is based upon the employees' final salary and length of service,
subject to the completion of a minimum sendce period in accordance with
ralevant labour law and tha employees' contracts, The expected costs of these
benafils are accrued over the perod of employmeant. This liability, which is
unfunded, represents the amount payable to sach empioyee as a result of
tarmination on the reporting date. i

With respect to its Kuwsiti national employees, in addition o the end of sarvice
benefits, the Group makes confributions to the Public Institufion for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries. The Group's
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of astimation
uncertainty at the financial position date, which have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below;

impaimnent of financial assels

Measuremant of estimated credit losses involves aslimates of loss given default
and probability of default. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in
case of dafault by customer. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood
of dafault In the future, The Group makes these estimates using reasonable and
supporiable forward-looking information, which is hased on assumptions for the
future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other.

An aestimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable is made when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable, For individually significant
amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are
not individually significant, bul which are past due, are asseased collectively and
a pravision applied according to the length of time past due, basad on historical
recovery rates.

Usefil lives of depreciable assels

Managemen: reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciabde assets at
mach reporting date, based on the expected utllity of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical obsolescence thal may change the utility of
cartain software and eguipment.
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Provision for outstanding claims and IBNR

Considerable judgment by the Management is required in the estimation of
amounts due to confract holders arising from clasms made under Insurance
contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on significant assumptions
about several factors involving varying, and possible if significant, degrees of
judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from Management's
estimates resulting in the future changes In the estimated Eabiliies. The Group
generally estimates its claims based on previous experience. Claims requiring
court or arbitration decisions are estimated individuzlly, The Management
reviews ifs provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not reported,
on a monthly basis.

Rensurance

The Group is exposed to disputes with, and possibilty of defaulls by, its
reinsurers. The Group monitors on a quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with
and the strength of its reinsurers.
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Statement of consolidated policyholders' results by line of business:
Year ended 31 December 2020:

tdarine
and Hehax Fire Lite Total
R accident
awiaton

Prembums writhen 214,758 2227 974 _'I 350 605 164,733 39T 26T
Less: reinsurance (188 444} {1,330,622) (7,245,310} [ T8.520) (2,841, 89)
cadad =
Net premiums 28,311 BA7, 352 105,408 105,213 1,136,371
Movemant in 12.155 483,951 {12,822 = 463,284
unearmed premiums s -
ket premiums a0 A5 1,381,303 02673 105,213 1,619,655
eamed
Policy iEsuance 10,653 71,868 1,442 173 84174
fees
Reinzurance 44 070 B, DE0 B, 073 58405 181,058
COMMIissions
samad -
Total revenus 100,236 1,519,229 154,188 111,232 1,684 08T
Net claimes incurred (180,264} [1.546 586) (33,006} (172317) (1,932, 263)
Retakaful shara of 162,527 05 853 26587 61,750 49 827
chkaims incurmed
Wcrvament in
provision for claims
incurred buf not
Movamant in life
takaful
mathamatigal
resary s - = - - -
Palicy  acguisition (3, 142) (204,381) [F7.681) (5,972} (268,076}
cosis
Provision far [548,043)
outstanding claims 21,806 [578,543) (21,847} 27 341
Total expenses {8,073} (1,618,617) {102,667} (89,198) {1,819,555)
Surplus/  (deficit) 91,168 [99,388) 61,521 22,034 65,332

line of
business
Aliocation of  {49.160) (510,010) (E09.215) (d2,288) (810,673
general and
admintstrative
BHpenses — =
Het surphus/ 42 005 i(609,398) (257, 604) (20,254 (345,341}
[deficit) from
Insurance
operations
ket irvastmenis TATT TT.EeM 47 030 £.432 138,510
and other income _ ) o
Met surplus! 49,482 (531,827} {210,564} {13,822) (706 831)
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fdarina
and
aviation

General

ek Fire Lifg Tatal

{deficit) from

takaful insurance

operations

IS from 106, 444
leasing actvities

Expenses related 1o (137,030
lzasing acthities

Mamagement  fees

fram  policyhoiders®

= balow

Net surplus (738,317)
transferrad i1+

policyholders”

fund

Other

comprehensive

income  for the

year:

Egquity imvesirmeanls

af fair wvalua throwgh

other

comprahensive

incoma

Less: Net change in {2,206)
fair  walue arising

during the year

Totai other {2,206)
comprehensive loes

for the year

Nat deficit including

inbhiar

comprehansive

INGOTmE {740,523)

ar
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Statement of consolidated policyholders® results by line of business:

Year ended 31 December 2019;

Premiums writtan

Less: rensurance
caded

Net pramiums
Mevarnant in
LifEarTed
premiums

hat pramiums
samad

Policy  issuance
feas
Rairesuranon
COmMISSions
aarned

Total revenue

Met claims
incurred
Retakatul share aof
claims incurred
Movarment in
provision far
clams incurred
Bt mad repored
Movement in life
takaiul
imathematical
TASEME

Folicy acquisition
ToslE

Total expenses
Surplusf  [defcit)
by line of
business
Allocation af
genersl and
administrative
EXOENSSE

Met surpius/
daficit) from
insurance
operations

Met  invesiments
and other Income
Met surplusf
{deficit) from
takaful insurance

barine

Genearal : -
ard ; Fire Lifa Totad
Fviation Bocidanl

31,823 3,738,862 1550278 317,843 5,838,904
{206,851} (1,092 839) _(1.4622300 (121.647) (2,883,567)
28072 2,648,023 88,048 196,196 2,055,337
2,189  _ (261,852} {0445} {20.597) (298,725)
27,241 2.284,171 74,601 166,580 2,656,612
8,080 86,143 2,301 446 73,979
63645 70,769 80,499 5873 220,786
95,975 2,521,083 161 401 172,818 2.951 377
{50.433) {4,604,180) (210,025  (138.581) (5,003,189)
34633 2071019 199,765 34,048 2,330,483
~ (95 - . (85}
= = 3| -?22 a‘:TH
(9375 (877489 {87,201) (3,883) (o78,018)
(25,175) (3,410,725) (97.531)  (104,676)  (3,638,107)
70,800 (B89,642) 83,870 68,242 (688,730)
{43,008 (6AS 088) {283,753 _ (63,005} _{1,072754]
27,782 (1,576,630 (218,883) 8,237 [1.759,484)
3,218 51,390 21,287 4,353 80,243
31,010 {1,525,240) (188,5596) 13,530 {1,679,2386)
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harine
and
aniation

Genaeral

Lif Total
accidant Lo " 9

operations
Incorme fram
leasing activities 146,088
Expenses relaled

o leasing i

activities {168,519)
et surplusg
fransfarrad i
policyholders

furd

(1,701,656)

Other
comprehensive
income for the
year,
Epuity
invastmeants ai fair
value thraugh
othar
comprehensive
imcome
Lass: Mot change
m fair  vadue
is5i e
:;:lrrtg dunng £ bt
Total other
comprehensive
loas for the year o524
Met deficit
including other
comprehensive

imcome [1,711,180)

* In accordance with tha Parent Company's Arlicles of Association, sharehoiders
are entited to management fees from policyholders up to 209 of the fotal
premiums written and investrment income, In s meeting held on 21June 2017,
the Board of Directors resoived 10 calculate management fees at 20% of the profit
instaad of 20% of revenue as a rght to shareholders In the resulls of
policyholders starting from 1 April 2017 until further notice.
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Consclidated statement of policyholders' assets, liabilities and fund

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Irvagtment deposits

Financlal sssets at fair value through profit
or kss

Accounts and other receivables

Premiums recavable

Financial assets at fair value through ather
comprehensive income

Dhue fram redated parties

Goodwill

Reinsurers’ share of oulstanding claims
(ses b helow)

Retakaful contribution receivables
Leasahald land

Intangible assets

Equipmani

Tetal assets

Liabilities and Policyholders® fund
Liabilities

Dutstanding clalims resarve

Unearmed pramiurms

Incurred but not reporbed claims fesend
Provision for unallocated claim sellemean
EYPENEEE

Lease payables

Payables and accrued expenses (see &
belaw)

Amaunt due to shareholders

Qard Hassan fram shareholders

Total liabilities

Paolicyholders' fund

Policyholders' fund  balance as at the
baegmning. of the year

Met {deficit) of policyholders for the year

- Fair value reserva at beginning of the year
Change in tair value during the year
Fair value reserve at end of the year
Total policyholders’ fund as a1 end of the

year
Tatal liahilities and policyholders' fund

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
93,039 17,708
1,083 482 1,326,000
L 300,417
3,192,521 1,328,102
1,514 824 1,608,781
128,136 130,342
11,377
409,766 408, 786
1,507 960 4,130,475
1,479,326 2,408,165
277,750 277,750
16,628 -
130,320 186,063
9,855,139 12,143,568
2,463,036 E,581,105
954,472 1,474 573
80,646 27.708
34,821 -
17,019
6,919,779 4,970,906
6,745,170 8,727,555
__ 1825811 1,625,611
18,819,552 20,387,458
(8,083,989) {6,382 331)
{738,317} {1,701,658)
(8,822,306} {8.,083,887)
(158,802) [160,375)
(2,208} (9,524}
(162,108) (150,902)
(B,984.414) {8,243,880)
8,855,139 12,143,569
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18-

This batance includes an amount relating to liabilty towards a governmant
bady (the *plaintif®). During the year ended 31 Decamber 2017, the Court of
Appeal in the State of Kuwait ruled in favor of the plaintiff ordering the Group
o pay KD 3,636,022. Therefore, the Group reclassified the balance from
*sutstanding claims reserve” to "accounts and other payables®. However,
the Group filed an appeal In cassation against the Court of Appeal's
judgment before the Court of Cassation. The appeal in cassation is sl

pending.

During the year, the Group received an overall assassmant of a government
claim for damages incurred as a result of recent rainfall in Kuwait. The
Group's share of this claim was calculated fo be equivalant to KD 3,087,700
aut of which KD 1,774,835 was paid during the year. This amount is fully
reinsurad and has been recognised both in reingurance shara of outstanding
claims and outstanding ciaims reserva.

Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major sharsholders, direciors and key management
parsonnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jeintly controlled or significantly
influenced by such parties. Pricing poficies and terms of these transactions are
approved by the Group's management. Transactions between the Parent Company
and its subsidlaries, which are melated parties of the Parent Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Detalls of transactions
betwaen tha Group and other related parties are disclosad below:

2020 20149
Sharaholders
Consolidated statement of profit or
loss:
Salaries and short-term benefits 15,000 15,000
Consolidated statement of financial
position:
Investmants at fair value through othar 831,764 941,008

comprahensive income

Transactions with related parties are subject to the approval of the sharehaolder's
general assembdy.

Investment at fair value through other comprehensive income above include the
Group's investments in the shares of subsidiaries of the Ulimate Parent
Company (Investment Dar Company) amounting to KD 615,042 (31 December
2019; KD Bod 357).
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2020 2019
Policyholders
Key management compensation:
Salaries and shor-term benefits 124,608 181,152
End of service benefits 8,533 24 347
133,141 205,499

19-  Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by the chial operating decision mal_r.ers im order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its parformanca, and is reconciled

to Group's profit or loss,

The Group's prasanted segments are investment, Takaful insurance and car rental.

Tha relevant sector information is as follows:

Takaful

Irwestment e, Unallccated Tokal
Sharehodders
Year ended 3
Decamber 2020
Rirveanus 35,245 56,245
Profitf (loss) for 1 - 1,312 850 1,277 Ba4
Pl e o i h { ¥
fis at 31 Decamber
2020
Tolal essats 4,180,070 TPFATOT 26,924 11,880,701
Tobal lishiikes - . 80,988 80,988
Met assets 4,180,070 T.ATaar [E4,065) 11,689,712
Shareholders
Year ended 3
Decamber 2015
Fevanus (5,337 {5.337)
;r:Eﬂ {lass) for the (5,337 a {81, 763) {BT.1:20)
A at 31 Decamber
#0149
Total assals 4,305 368 .56 O 16,776 12,076,237
Total kabilities - - (25, 268) (25,248)
Mel @gs=ts 4,303,368 7. 766,002 (8,472) 12,050,964
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Takaful

_Inwutrmnt i Car rental Unallocated Total
Follcyholdars
Year ended 39
Decembar 2020
Ravenue 138,610 1,084,887 106,444 2,129,841
Profitl {loss] for .
the year 138,510 {845,341) {31,486) {738,317)
As at 31 Decsmbar
2020
Total assats 1,498,378 4,502,110 450,085 3,403,586 9,855,139
Total liabliias - 16,538,777 B1445 3,213,327 18,633,553
Mot assats 1,408,378 (11,038,067) ea81E 184,259 {8,804, 444)
Pelicyholders
Yeor ended
Decamber 2019
Gross revenug 0,248 2.951 37T 146,089 AT T4
::Tr (loss) for Me 80,240 {1,753,484) {22,420 (1,701,656)
fs gt M December
2019
Total assels 2034 508 8957 421 459,764 1,491 875 12,143,560
Totsl lisbilties {10,248 523) (58,524 (1,080,011} {20,387, 458)
Met assots 2 034,508 {11,091,102) 0. B4 411 B4 (6,243 BE9)
20- Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's risk and financial management framework is 10 protact the Group's
shareholders and policyholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement
of financial performance objectives, including failing o exploit oppordunities. Key
management recognises the critical importance of having sfficient and effective nisk
management systems in placa.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for establishing an
overall Ask management function and appreving fsk strategies and principles.

Law No. 24 of 1961, Law No.13 of 1962 and Decrea No. & of 1989, and the rules and
regulations issued by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry provide the regulatory
framework for the nsurance industry in the State of Kuwait. All msurance companies
operating in Kuwait are required to follow these nules and regulations.

On 1 September 2078, the new Insurance Law No. 125 of 2019 has been issued and
is effective from 28 August 2019, This law supersedes the Law Mo, 24 of 1961, The
Executive Regulations of the new Law have not bean issusd yet.
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The following are the key regulations governing the operations of the Group!

a- For the life and capilal insurance contrects issued in Kuwait, the full mathematical
rezerves are to be retamad in Kuwait.

b- For marine insurance confracts, at legst 15% of the pramiums collected in the
previous yaar are to be retained in Kuwait.

o~ For all other typas of takaful Insurance, at least 30% of the premiums collected in
the previous year are o be retained in Kuwait.

The funds retained in Kuwail should be Invested as under:

a- A sinimum of 40% of the funds are to be in the form of cash deposits in a bank
operating in Kuwail

b- A maximum of 25% could be invested in foreign securities {foreign government
bonds or foreign securities — bonds and sharehalding companies)

o= A maximum of 30% should ba invested in Kuwaiti companies’ shares or bonds

d- A maximum of 15% should ba in a current account with 8 bank operating in
Kuwait

The remaining value may be Invested in bonds issued or guaranteed by the
Government of Kuwait, properties based in Kuwait or loans secured by first morigage
of proparties based in Kuwait,

The Group's senior managament is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
ahaove requiation and has a delegated authorities and responsibilities from the board
of directors to ensure compliance.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk is tha risk that actual claims payable to policyholders in respect of
insured events excead the camying amount of insurance liabilities. This could ocour
because the frequency or amounts of claims are more than expected.

Frequancy and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group
underarites mainly marine and aviation, fire and general accdent. motor and life
risks. These are regarded as shorl-lerm insurance contracts as claims are normally
advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking placa. This helps o
mitigate insurance risk,

1-  Moan-life insurance contracts

The Group principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts:
Maring-Cargo, Hull Comprehensive & Third Party Liability, Fire, House-holders
Comprehensive, Contractors All Risks, Erection All Risks, Machinery Breakdown,
Electronic Equipment, Burglary, FPersonal Accident, Cash in Transit, Fidelity
Guarantes, Plate Glass. Workmen Compensation, Third Party Liability,
Professional  Indemnity, Bankers Blankei, Travel Assistance, Motor
Comprehensive, and Motor Third Party Liability and Healthcare contracts. Risks
under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve-month duration.
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For general insurance contracts the most significent risks anse from climale
changes, natural disasters and terrarist activities.

Marne and avialion

For marine insurance the main risks are loss or damage to marine crafi and
accidants resulling in the total or partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that
policies are well diversified In terms of vessals and shipping routes covered. The
Group has reinsurance cover to fimit losses for any individual claim up to KD
1,400,000 (31 Decamber 201%: KD 400,000},

Fire and accident

For property insurance contracts, the main risks are fire and business
interruption. In recent years the Group has only underwritten policies for
properties containing fire detection equipment,

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the
properties and contants insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining
replacement contants and the time taken to restant operations which leads to
business interruptions are the maln factors that influence the level of claims. The
Group has remsurance cover for such damage to limit losses for any Individual
claim up to KD 3,250,000 (31 December 2019:; KD 3,250,000).

Motor

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the
replacement or repair of vehicles. In recent years the Group has primarily
underwritten comprehensive polices for owner/ drivers over 21 years of age. The
Group has reinsurance cover to limit lesses for any individual claim up to KD
600,000 (31 December 2019: KD 600,000).

The level of court awards far deaths and to injured parties and the replacement
costs of, and repairs to molor vehicles are the kay factors that influence the level
ol claims,

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the kocation of the risk insured
by the Group, type of risk nsured and by industry.

The above risk exposure & mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of
insurance contracts. The variability of risks is improved by careful salection and
implementation of underwriting stralegies, which are designed to ensure that
risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. Further,
atrict claim review policies fo assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed
review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible
fraudulent claims are all policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk
exposure of the Group. The Group further enforces a policy of actively managing
and prompt pursuing of claims, In order to reduce Il exposure to unpredictable
future developments that can negatively impact the Group.
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The Group has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on
certain contracls as well as the use of reinsurance arangements in order to imit
exposure io catastrophic events (e.g. hurricanes, earthquakes and flood
damages).

Tha table below sets out the concantration of non-life insuranca contract liabilitias
by type of contract,

3 December 2020 31 December 2018
Gross Reinsurers” Met Gross Relnsurers'  MNat
liabilitiez =share liabilitias liabilities  share liabilifies
Marina
and 226,910 186,442 40486 171257  (145354) 25903
aAviation
i‘]‘jﬂ 2711926 1,330,622 1,381,304 4334235 (3024082} 1310153
Fire 1,337,983 1,245,310 22873 593,271 (673 4330 18,838
Total 4, 276,619 2.?'5513?4 1,514,443 5188 763 (3 B42 B6OY 1,355,804
Key assumptions

The principal assumplion underlying the estimates s the Group's past claims
deyvelopmeant experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim
costs, claim handling costs, claim inflation faclors and claim numbers for each
accident year. Additional qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to
which pasl trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence,
changes in market faclors such as public affitude lo claiming, economic
conditions, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy condilions and
claims handiing procedures. Judgment is futher used to assess the extent to
which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation
affect the estimates.

2. Life msuranca conlracts

For life insurance tha main risks are claims for medical, death or permanent
disability. The underwriling strategy for the Hfe of business i to ensure that
policies are wall diversified In terms of type of risk and level of insured benefit
This is achieved through the use of medical screening In order to ensure thal
pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical histary. For
healthcare contracts the most slgnificant risks arse from lifestyla changes,
apidemics and medical science and technology mprovements,

These risks do nol vary significantly in ralation to the location of the risk insured
by the Group, type of risk insured and by industry.

Life Insurance contracts offered by the Group include Group whole life insurance
and Group medical including third party administration (TPA).
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The main risks that the Group is exposed to are as follows.

= Morality risk - rizk of loss srising due to policyholder death experience being
differant than expected.

s Morbidlty risk - risk of loss arsing dus to policyholder health experience
baing different then axpactad.

= Longevity risk - risk of loss arsing due to the annuitant living longer than

expacted.

s Investment retumn risk — risk of loss ansing from actual returns being different
than expected.

« Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different
than expectad.

= Policyholder decision risk - risk of loss: arising due to policyholder
experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured
by the Group as life business mainly written in the Gulf countries.

The Group's underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well
diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits, This is largely
achieved through the use of medical screening in order to ensure thatl pricing
takes account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular
review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims
handling procedures. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriata risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right not to renew individieal
policies, It can impose deductibles and it has the right o reject the payment of
fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitte the Group to pursue third
partias for payment of some or all costs, The Group further enforces a policy of
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order Lo reduce s exposure
to unpredictable future developments that can negafvely impact the Graup.

For confracts where death or disability are the insured risks the significant factors
that could increase the overall frequency of claims sre epidemics, widespread
changes In lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than
expected,

The insurance risks descrbad above are also affected by the contract holders'
right to pay reduced or no future premiums, to terminate the contract completely.
As a resull, the amount of insurance risk is also subject to contract holder
hehavionr
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The table below sets out the concentration of life insurance by type of contract,

31 Decamber 2020 31 Decamber 2079
Gross  Reinsurers' Met Gross  Relnsurers' =
liabilities share liabilities liabilitias share llabiities
Life 184,733 78820 105312 362342 (206606) 65,736
takaful
Insurance

Al lifa insurance contracis are in Kuwait. The analysis above would not be
matarally different i based on the countries in which the counterparties are
siluated.

Materal judgment is required in determining the liabilities and in tha choice of
assumptions. Assumptions in use are based on past experience, curment internal
data extarnal market indices and benchmarks which reflect current observable
market prices and other publishad information. Assumptions and prudent
estimates are dotarmined at the date of valuation. Assumptions are further
evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistc and reasonable
valuations.

Life insurance conlract astimates are either based on current assumptions or
calculated using the assumptions establishad at the ime the contract was issued,
in which csse a margin for risk and adverse deviation I8 generally included,
Assumptions are made in relation to future deaths, voluntary terminations,
investment retums and administration expenses. If the labilties are not
adequate, the assumptions are altered to reflect the current estimates.

20-2 Financial risks
The Group's activities expose il to variety of financial risks. market risk ({including
currancy risk, profit rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

The Group doas not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The most significant financial risks to which the Group ls exposed are described
below,

20-2-1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one par ty fo a financial Instrument will cause a financial loss
to the other party by failing to discharga an obligation. The Group's cradit policy and
exposure to credit risk 5 monitored on an engoing basis, The Group seeks fo avoid
undue concentrations of risks with individuals or Group of customers in specific
locations ar business through diversification of its activities.
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The table balaw show the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the

consalidated financial position:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Shareholders
Cash and cash equivalents 11,169 10,174
Investmant daposits 186,585 52.000
Other receivables 9,340 6,602
Qard Hassan to policyhalders 1,463,111 1463111
Due from policyholders 6,310,596 6,252,981
7,990,801 7.824 868
31 December 27 December
2020 2018
Policyholders
bank balancas 83,039 14,080
Investment daposits 1,093,492 1,326,000
Accounts and other recenables 3,182,521 1,328,102
Premiums receivabla 1,514,824 1,609,781
Reinsurers’ share of oulstanding claims 1,507 960 4139475
Fetakaful contribution receivables 1,479,326 2.408,165
E;ﬂﬂ'l,"FEi 10,825,603

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using inemal credit
ratings. The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for related financial
position lines, based an the Group's credit rating syatenm.
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As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, credil quality per class is as

follows:
Meither past dus nor
— impairad Past dua or Total
High grade Standard impaired
grade
31 December 2020
Shareholdars
Cash and cash - '
equivalents 11,969 11,168
Investment daposits 196,585 -, - 196,585
Oiher receivables - & 340 - 9,340
Qard Hassan to -
licyhoidacs - 1483111 1463111
Due from policyholders - - B 310596 6310506
207,754 9,340 7073, 707 7,890,801
Policyholders
bank balances BE 022 - - 86,022
Imvastmant deposils 1,093 482 - - 1,083,482
Accounta and ather 2,130,325 1,062,196 3,192 521
receivables
Premiums recaivabla 529,703 382 B02 602,319 1,514,824
Reinsurars’ share of
outstanding claims 1,507 260 - 1,507,960
Retakaful contribution 1.479,326 . 1479326
recaivables
5,347 502 1,662,128 1,664 515 B.A874145
Meithar past due nor
impaired Past due or Total
High grade Standard impairad
qrade
41 December 2019
Shareholders
Cash and cash
- - 4
aquivelante 10,174 10,17
Investment daposits 52,000 - 52,000
Other receivables - 6,602 6,602
\AfiC. Hpmpan 19 i - 1463111 1463111
policyholders
Due from policyholders - - 6202981 6.292 981
62,174 6,602 7,706,082 7,824 BEB
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Paolicyholders

bank balances 14,080 - :: 14,080

Investment deposits 1,326,000 - - 1,326,000

Accounts and other

e 204,943 265,620 7a97.539 1,328,102

Premiums recaivable 491,344 40,171 1,078,262 1,609,781

Reinsurers’ share of I .

oulstanding claims 4,139.475 4139475

Rtakaiul coniiibubion - 2,408,165 . 2,408,165
_receivables

6235846 2713956 1875801 10,825 603

20-2-2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meel its labiliies whan they
fall due. To limit this risk, the Management has amanged diversified funding sources,
manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors kquidity on a regular basis. The
undiscounted cash outflows for financial liabilities are not materially differant from
thoze presentad below.

Maturity prafile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2018

\Kits Giia r Above one 31 Decembaer
31 Docember 2020 P YR year 2020
Shareholders
Azsets
Cash and cash
= 1.1
aquivalants 11,168 11,169
Investment deposits 196,585 - 196 585
Investmentz at fair value
- i w3

Hecicih profit o losis 223,33 223,337
Investments at fair value
thraugh ather - 931,764 531,764
comprahansive Income
Qard Hassan lo - 1483111 1,463,111
policyhelders” fund o R
Due from policyhaldars - 8,310,598 6,310,596
Investment properties - 2,828 3184 2,828,384
Equipment and property . 6,415 8415
Other receivables 9,340 9,340

207,754 11,772,847 11,980,701
Liabditias
Cither payables 80,989 - 80,889

80,959 - 80,088

Net exposura 116,765 11,772,947 11,688,712

&
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Above one 31 December
31 December 2020 Up to one year year 2020
FPolicyholders
Azzels
= G- ey 93,039 . 53,039
egulvalents
Investment deposits - 1,083,492 - 1,093 492
Investments at fair value 2 & ;
through profit or loss
Accounts and other 3,192,521 . 3,162,521
recaivablas
Premiums receivable 1,514,824 - 1,594 824
Investments at fair value
through other - 128,136 128,135
comprehensive income
Due from related parties 11,377 - 11,377
Goodwill - 400 TGEE 409 768
FAINSUIBrS: Share:a) - 1,507,960 1,507,960
aulstanding claims
Retakaful contribution
- 4790
A e 1.475,326 1,479,326
Leasehold land - 277,250 277.750
Infangible assets - 16,628 16,628
Eguipmant = 130,320 130.320
1,526 201 3,949,386 8,855,139
Liahilit'les_ :
Eluistﬂnl:llﬂg Elﬂlﬁ'ﬁ- - 2.1‘53,535 2;4!531':'35
resene
Uneamed premiums - B854 472 554472
Incurred but not reporied 89 846 89 646
claims reserve
Provigion for unalocated
1
claim settlement expenses AR e
Leasa payables 17,019 17019
sg::;’;;f Ak e 6,616,779 : 6,915,779
Due to sharehoklers - 6,745,170 8,745,170
St TR 1,625,611 1625611
shareholdars
6,936,738 11,802,755 18,639,653
~ Mat axpasiire 5.410.687 7,953,369 (8,684 414)
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Above one 31 December
31 December 2019 wpincag ey year 2019
Shareholders
Azzpts 10,174 - 10,174
Cash and cash
- 52.000
gquivalents Rl 4
Investmeant deposits 227 303 - 227,303
investments at fair valua
- 1,112,996 1,112,996
through profit or loss
Investments at fair value
through other - G,292 981 6,292,981
comprehensive income
Due fram policyholders - 1,463,111 1,463,111
investment proparties - 2911070 2.911,070
Other receivablas 6,602 - 6,602
206 079 11,780,158 12,076,237
Liahilities
Other pavables 25 248 - 25,248
25,248 - 25248
Net exposure 270,831 11,780,158 12,050,988
Policyholders
Assels
Cash and cash 17,708 . 17,708
equivalents
Investment deposits 1,326,000 - 1,326,000
Investments at fair value 900,417 7 300,417
through profit or loss
Accounts ather
1 - 1,328,102
vl 1,328,102
Premiums recelvable 1,609,781 - 1,609,781
Investmeants at fair value
through other 130,342 130,342
comprehansive Income
Goodwill - 409,766 409,766
Reinsurers’ share of . 4138475 4,139,475
ouistanding nlaims_ i Al
Retakaiul corribution 280,554 2127611 2 408,165
raceivables
Leasehold land 277,750 277,750
Equipment - 196,063 186,063
4 862,562 7,281,007 12,143 669
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Above one 31 December

31 December 2019 U to oni yeur year 2019

Liabilltias

Outstanding claims : 5,561,105 5 561,105

resane

Uneamed premiums - 1,474 573 1474573

Incumed bul not I'EFIDITEEI N 27 708 97 708

claims reserve '

Accounts  and  other 4.970.906 - 4,970,906

payables

Cue to sharsholders - G, T27.555 6,727,555

Qard Hassan from = 1,625,611 1.625,6811

ghareholders L B E

e 4,870,806 15,416,552 20,387 458

 Met exposure {108,344} (B 135 545) {B,243 BBI)

20-2-3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in markeal pricas,

Market risk compriges three fypes of risk: foreign exchange rales (currency risk),
miarkat interest rates (profit rate rizk) and market prices {equity price risk).

The Group limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by monitoring
the developments in markeis,

a_

L=

Currancy risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial Instrument will fuctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group s not exposed fo significant
currency risk because the Group's significant transactions, assets and liabilties
are dominated in its functional currency.

Profit rate sk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect
future profitability or the falr values of financial Instruments. As the Group's
interast-bearing assets are deposits with banks mostly at fixed rates over the
contractual term, the Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
indapendent of changes in market interest rates, The Group does not have any
interest-baaring llabilities,

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed o equity prica risk with respact to s equily investmeants.
Equity investments are classified as investments at fair value through profit or
loss and investrments at fair value through other comprehensive income, To
manage its price risk arising from investments in equity secunties, the Group
diversifles its imvastments.
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The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure (o
aquity price risks associated with its nvestments in securities at the reporing
dale. There has been no change during the year in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

If equity prices had been 5% (31 Decembar 201%: 5%) higher fower, the effect
an the loss far the vear and equity would have been as follows:

31 Decembar 2020 31 December 2021

Increase Decrease Incresse Decreasa
Sharehoiders 5 %65 85 a5
Impact on equily 29 EE6 (28,666) 259,005 [25,005)
impact on profif 11,1687 (11,167} 11,365 (11,365)
for the year
Policyholders
Impact on 725 {728) B35 (838)
palicyholdars'
results

21- Fair value measurameant
21-1  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group's financlal assets and liabilties stated in the
cansolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

31 December 31 Decembar

2020 2019

Shareholders’ assets and liabilities
Financial assets
At amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 11,169 10,174
Investment deposits 196,585 52,000
Due from policyholders (net of provision) 6,310,596 6,202 951
Card Hassan to policyholders” fund (net 1,463,111 1.463.111
of provision)
Dther receivables 9,340 6,602
Financial assets at fair value
Investments at fair value through other 931,764 1.112.086
comprehensiva incomea
:ﬂn;:ahﬂanfs at falr value through profit or 223,337 227303

9,145,902 g 165 167
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Accounts and other payables 90,989 25,248

80,989 25 248
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21-2

31 December 31 December

2020 2018

Policyholders” assets and liabilities

Financial assets

At amortized cost

Cash and cash eguivalents 93,035 17,708

Invastment deposils 1,093,492 1,326,000

Accounts and other receivables 3,192,521 1,328,102

Pramiums receiyable 1,514,824 1,808,781

Relnzurance share of outstanding claims 1,507,960 4,130 4TS5

Retakaful contribution receivablas 1,479,326 2,408,165

Due from related parties 11,377

Financlal assets at fair value

Investments at fair value through other

camiEeabansie Incoms 128,136 130,342

:;;:gtmarm at fair value through profit or . 00 417

8,020,675 11,258 990

Financial llabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Linearnad premiums 854,472 1474 573

Accounts and other payables 6,910,779 4,870,906

Due to sharehaldars 6,745,170 6,727,555

ard Hassan from shareholders 1,625,611 1,625,611
e 16,246,032 14,798 645

Management considers that the carrying amounts of loans and receivables and
financizl Eabilties, which are stated al amorized cost, approximate their fair values.

Fair valua measuremant

Fair valua repregents tha price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer & lability in an orderdy transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The Group measures financial Instruments at fair value and
measurement details are disclosed balow. In the opinion of the Group's managament,
tha carrying amounts of all other financial assals and liabiliies, which are carred at
amorizad costs, are considered a reasonable approximaticn of thair fair values.

Fair valug hierarchy

All assets and labilities for which fair value s measured or disclosed in the
consalidated statement of financial position are grouped into three lavels of a fair
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant
inputs to the measurement, as follows:

« Lovel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assels or
liabilities,
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» Level 2 inputs other than guoted pricas included within Level 1 that are
obsarvable for the agset or liability, either directly {i.e. as pricas) or indirectly (i.e.
darivad from prices); and

s Leveld: inputs for the asset or kability thal ara not based on cbservable market
data (i.e. unochservable inputs).

The laval within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determinad based
on the lowast level or significant input to the fair value maasurameant,

The financial aasets and liabilltles measured at fair value on a recurring basis in fhe
consclidated statement of financial position are grouped info the fair value higrarchy
as follows;

31 December 2020
Lewvel 1 Laval 2 Level 3 Total

Shareholders:
Investments at fair wvalue
through profit or loss
Local quoted securites held
though managed porifolios
Investments al fair value
through other
comprehansiva incoma
= Localquoted sacuntas 369,881 - - 369 981
»: Lo GO : - 561783 561,783
securitias
Managed portfolios = - - -
Managed funds :

993 318 - 861,783 1,155,101

Policyholders

Investiments at fair valus

through profit or loss

= Managed funds - = - i

Investments at fair value
through other - 113,625 112,625
comprenensive incame

= Localquoted securitias 14,511 - - 14,511
=  Managed portfolios

14,511 5 113,625 128,136
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31 December 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Lawval 3 Tolal
Shargholders:
Investments &t fair value
through profit or loss
» Local quoted securities 227.303 - - 227303
held though managed
portfolios
Investments atl fair value
through other
comprehansive income
» Localguoted securities 16,804 - = 16,804
¢ Local unquoted - - 78,2683 TE263
sacurities
Managed portfolics 335,896 - 378,318 714,215
Managed funds 05 614 03,614

580,103 303,614 456,582 1,340,299

Policyholders
Invastments at fair value
through profit or loss

* Managed funds - - 200417 - 007
Invaziments at falr value

through othar

comprehansive income

s Localguoted securities 16,750 - - 16,750
#  Managed porifolios 113,582 113,592

16,750 300,417 113, 502 430,769

There have baen no fransfers between levels 1 and 2 during the reporing period.

Measurement at fair value

The methods and valuation technigues used for the purpose of measunng fair value
are unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.

a=

Quoted securities: All the listed equity securities are publicly traded in stock
exchanges. Fair velues have been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the reporting date.

Ungquoted securities: Unlistad securities are measured at fair value estimated
using various models ke discounted cash flow model, which includes some
assumptions that @are not supportable by observable market prices or rates,

Managed funds and portfolios: The underylng invesiments of managed funds
and portfolios primarly comprise of local and foreign quoted and unguoted
sacurties whose fair values have been determined based on the fund's /porifolio’s
managers' repor as at the reporting dates.
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Lewvel 3 fair value measurements

The Group's financial assets classified in Level3 uses valuation techniques based on
significant inputs that are not based on observable market data. The financial
instruments within this level can be raconciled from beginning to ending balances as
folkows:

Policyholders Sharehoiders
Ungueied securilies Unquoted securiies
Investments  Investmenis at  Investments  Investmenis at
at fair valua at Tair valua
Fair value through OCl fair value through ©CI
through OCI throwgh OCI
31 December 31 December 31 December 37 December
2020 2018 2020 2013
Opening balance 113 5592 150,500 456, 582 B 31T
Transfer - - - -
Disposal = [3T 628} - [ 10,065)
Change in fair 14,544 717 105,201 {123,770)
_valus
Closing balance 128,136 113,592 5B1,TB3 A56 582

The Group's finance team performs valuations of financial Rems for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 3 fair values. Valuation techniques are selected basad on
the characterstics of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximizing the use
of market-based information.

The valuation techniques used for Instruments categorized in Level 3 are described
babaw:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not tradad in an active market (2.3,
unguoted securities) s determined by using valustion techniques. Fair value for the
ungquated securities invastments is approximately the summation of the estimated
valug of underlying mvestmentz as If realized on the consolidated statement of
financial position data. The investment managers, in determining the fair value of
thase investments, usa a variely of mathods and makes assumptions that are bazed
on market condifions existing at each financial position data. Investment managers
used technigues such as discounted cash flow analysis, recent transactions prices
and market multiples to determing fair value.

The impact on the consclidated statement of profit or lose and the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income would be immateral if the relevant risk
variable used to fair value the Level 3 investments wera changad by 5%.
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21-3 Falr value measurement of non-financlal assets
The fallowing Lable shows the fair value hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at

fair value:
Lawvel 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2020
Invastment propery
+ Investment - 2,697,378 L. 2,697,378
huilding in Egypt
* Hotel - - 131,006 131,006
gpartmants  in
Jamzam Tower
in Holly Mecca
= 2,697,378 131,006 2,828,384
Lewel 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3 Total
31 December 2019
Investment property
«  |Investment - - 2,724,387 2,724,387

building in Egypt

2,724 387 2,724,387

Fair value of the Group's investment properly |s estmated based on appraisals
performead by an independent, professionally qualified property valuer. The significant
inputs and assumptions are developed in close consultation with management.

22- Contingent liabilities

Tha Group is a defendant in & number of legal cases filed by Takaful contract holdars
in respect of claims subject to dispute with the Group including a legal case filed by a
govarnment body agalnst the Group for an amount of KD 3,636,022, which the Group
has provided for in the accounts and other payable . Although the Court of Appeal
passed its ruling in favar of the State and the Parent Company filed appeal in
cassation before the Court of Cassation, the Farent Company has made provisions
which, in its opinion, are adequata to cover any resultant liabilites.

23-  Capital management objectives

The Group's capital managamenl objectives are to ensure the Group's ability to
continue as a going concem and provide adequate return to its shareholders through
the optimization of the capital structure.

The capital consists of total equity. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and othar variables
associated risk characteristics of the Group's underying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or izsue new shares. The Group monitors
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its capital by way of retumn on equity. This is calculated by refarence to (loss) for the
year divided by total equity as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
(Loss) for the year (1,277, 64d4d) {87,120
Total equity 11,880,712 12,050,989
Return on equity (% 10.75) (% 0.72)

24-  Impact of COVID=-19 Pandemic

In light of the emergenca of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) in the People's Republic of
China and its spread at a later stage in a number of countrias in the world, the World
Health Organization has announced a global apidemic classification, and in Hght of its
authreak at the level of the continents of the warld, the World Health Organization has
declared it to be classified from an epidemic o a pandamic. This has madea the
world's governments close their borders, suspend their operations, and apply curfew
within thalr borders. In the State of Kuwait, 8 number of legislations were issued as
part of the precautionary measures to combat the aforementioned pandemic, as
outlined balow:

a- On 25 February 2020, all fiights from cerain countries were suspended.
Subsequently, the suspension was extended to cover all air traffic in the State of
Kuwait on 12 March 2020,

b- On 10 March 2020, the government started imposing a moratarium on cartain
commercial activities, leading fo the implemantation of a partial curfew from
22 March 2020,

c- On 11 March 2020, the Council of Ministers announced the suspension of
govemnment and private entiies for a8 period of two weeks, and then il was
extended until 1B June 2020,

d- On 28 May 2020, the Council of Ministers announced the suspension of
governmant entities for a period of three weeks, which was than was axtended
until 21 June 2020,

g- On 30 June 2020, the government and business entities bagan to gradually
resume business activilies.

As & result of these precautionary measuras, the business has been suspended
either totally or partiafy, depending on the business soctor and according lo the
requiraments of controlling the pandemic.
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Tha Group's Management assessed the effect on the financial stalements as a result
of the current conditions. Significant changes are outlinad below:

a8 The Group considered the available information and current conditions as wall as
economic forecasts when determining the fair value of investment properties in
the consolidated financial statements. The Management believes that the
recognized values of investment properties represent the best estimate in light of
the current situation, reflecting impairment of investment properdies by KD
136,000,

b- The Group studiad the potantial effects of fluctuations in the current market to
determine the amounts recognized for the Group's unquoted financial assets in
light of the impact of COVID-18. This represents the best evaluation by the
management based on tha available cbsarvable information as at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. The Group closely monitors i the fair value of
financial aszets and Esbiliiies reprasenis the price thal would be realized for
transactions among markat participants under the current scenario.
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